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PER CURIAM:”
Jorge Ba buenaappeal shis sentenceimposed for hisguilty pleaconvictionfor possessionwith
intent to distribute more than five kilograms of cocaine, in violation of 21 U.S.C. § 841(a)(1) and

(0)(1)(A). We affirm.

Pursuant to 5™ CIR. R. 47.5, the court has determined that this opinion should not be
published and is not precedent except under the limited circumstances set forthin 5™ CIR. R. 47.5.4.



Balbuena s sole contention on appeal isthat the district court erred in concluding that hewas
not entitled to adownward adjustment pursuant to the “safety valve’ provisionof U.S.S.G. § 5C1.2.
We review for clear error the district court’s factual findings in declining to apply a 8 5C1.2
reduction. See United Satesv. Vasguez, 161 F.3d 909, 910 (5th Cir. 1998). A factua findingisnot
clearly erroneousaslong asit is“plausiblein light of therecord asawhole.” United Statesv. Ayala,
47 F.3d 688, 690 (5th Cir. 1996). We review de novo the district court’s legal interpretation of 8§
5C1.2. See United Satesv. Miller, 179 F.3d 961, 963 (5th Cir. 1999).

Sentencing Guideline 8 5C1.2 requiresthat adistrict court sentence adefendant convicted of
adrug offense”in accordancewith the applicable guiddineswithout regard to any statutory minimum
sentence, if the court finds that the defendant meets the criteria set forthin 18 U.S.C. 8§ 3553(f)(1)-
(5).” U.S.S.G. §5C1.2. Oneof those criteriaisthat the defendant must “truthfully provide]] to the
government al information and evidence [he] has concerning the offense. . . .”* 18 U.S.C. §
3553(f)(5). Thedefendant bearsthe burden of demonstrating that he hasdone so. See Vasquez, 161
F.3d at 912. Babuena asserts that he provided the government with all of the information he had
regarding the offense, and, thus, the district court erred in denying the him § 5C1.2 downward
departure. We disagree.

To satisfy the disclosure requirement, the defendant must divulge al of the information that

he has concerning the offense. See United States v. Brenes, 250 F.3d 290, 293 (5th Cir. 2001). In

! Theother criteriafor the safety provision are: (1) the defendant has no more than one

crimina history point; (2) the defendant did not use violence, credible threats of violence, or possess
afirearm or other dangerous weapon in connection with the offense; (3) the defendant’ s offense did
not result in death or serious bodily injury to any person; and (4) he was not an organizer, leader,
manager, or supervisor of othersand was not engaged in acontinuing crimina enterprise. 18 U.S.C.
§ 3553(f). That Balbuena satisfied these four requirementsis not in dispute.

-2



this case, Balbuena's counsal stated at sentencing that Balbuena had not revealed information
Balbuena had concerning the delivery, specifically, the name of person who drove the car delivering
the cocaine to the motel. Additionally, Balbuena's recitation of the events surrounding the instant
offense did not comport with the information the government knew through its surveillance. 1t was
not until the district court granted a recess in the sentencing hearing that Balbuena recounted to the
government the events of the offensein amanner more consi stent with the government’ ssurveillance
information. Thus, the district court did not commit clear error in finding that Balbuena had not
complied with § 5C1.2' s disclosure requirement. See United States v. Edwards, 65 F.3d 430, 433
(5th Cir.1995) (holding that where defendant changed his account of the drug quantity involved in
the offense, the district court could conclude that the defendant had not given the government al of
therelevant information concerning the offense, and, therefore, thedistrict court did not commit clear
error infinding that 8 5C1.2 did not apply). Furthermore, even assuming arguendo that Balbuena's
recess account of the events constituted afull disclosure, that disclosure cametoo late. See Brenes,
250 F.3d at 293 (finding that the district court committed clear error when it gave the defendant the
benefit of the safety vave provision when the defendant did not disclose hisknowledge until arecess
in the sentencing hearing). Therefore, the district court did not commit clear error in denying
Balbuena a § 5C1.2 downward departure.

Accordingly, we AFFIRM Balbuena’ s sentence.



